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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON

Diane L. Gruber and Mark Runnels, )
) Case No. _________________
)

Plaintiffs, ) COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL
) RIGHTS VIOLATION, 

vs. ) INJUNCTIVE AND DECLARATORY
) RELIEF AND DAMAGES

Oregon State Bar, a public corporation, )
)

Defendant. ) 42 USC §1983 (Freedom of Speech)
) 42 USC §1983 (Freedom of Association)
) 42 USC §1988 (Attorney Fees)

_________________________________)

Plaintiffs allege:

1.

Plaintiffs are all residents of the State of Oregon and are attorneys admitted by the

Oregon State Supreme Court to practice law.  They are all members of the Oregon State
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Bar as required by ORS 9.160.

2.

Defendant is a public corporation established pursuant to ORS 9.010.

3.

Plaintiffs are compelled to pay various fees, assessments and dues to Defendant

pursuant to ORS 9.191 as a condition of engaging in their state regulated profession.

4.

Defendant engages in various types of political and ideological activities which

Plaintiffs do not agree with.  An example of such activities includes the “Statement on

White Nationalism and Normalization of Violence” published in the April 2018 Oregon

State Bar Bulletin, which is paid for, in part, by the dues which Plaintiffs are compelled to

pay.  A true and accurate copy of the  “Statement on White Nationalism and

Normalization of Violence” is attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.

5.

Plaintiffs submit that this collection of compulsory fees from them violates their rights

under the First Amendment to the United States Constitution as recently set out by the US

Supreme Court in Janus v. American Federation of State, County and Municipal

Employees, et al, ___ S. Ct. ) _____ (No. 16–1466) (2018). They seek: (a) a declaratory

judgment against Defendant to this effect; (b) injunctive relief that prohibits Defendant

from seizing compulsory fees from them in the future; and (c) damages from the

Defendant for compulsory fees wrongfully seized from them.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. 

This is an action under the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1871, 42 U.S.C. § 1983, to redress
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the deprivation, under color of state law, of rights, privileges, and immunities secured to

Plaintiffs by the Constitution of the United States, particularly the First and

Fourteenth Amendments.

7. 

This Court has jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, because

they arise under the United States Constitution, and 28 U.S.C. § 1343 and because

Plaintiffs seek relief under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.  This Court has authority under 28 U.S.C.

§§ 2201 and 2202 to grant declaratory relief and other relief based thereon.

8.

Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 because a substantial part of

the events giving rise to the claim occurred in this district, and because the Defendant

operates or does business in this judicial district, thus residing in this district for purposes

of 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(c)(2) and 1391(d).

ALLEGATIONS

9.

Plaintiffs object to being compelled to financially contribute to the Oregon State

Bar as a condition of their being able to engage in their state regulated profession.

10.

Plaintiffs object to policies and activities of Defendant which are political or

ideological in nature and specifically object to many of those policies and activities.

11.

Plaintiffs object to be required to being a member of an organization as a condition

of their being able to engage in their state regulated profession.

///
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12.

Other options exist, such as the licensing system utilized by the State of Oregon

for all other professions regulated by the State of Oregon, to accomplish the purposes of

the requirement of membership in the Defendant through means significantly less

restrictive of Plaintiff’s associational freedoms.

COUNT I

(Compulsory Union Fees Violate 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and the United States Constitution)

13. 

Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the paragraphs set forth above.

14. 

By requiring under color of state law that Plaintiffs pay compulsory fees as a condition of

their professional activities, Defendant is violating Plaintiffs' First Amendment rights

to free speech, petitioning, and association, as secured by the Fourteenth Amendment to

the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

15. 

As a result, Plaintiffs are suffering the irreparable harm and injury inherent in a violation

of First Amendment rights for which there is no adequate remedy at law. Unless enjoined

by this Court, Plaintiffs will continue to suffer irreparable harm and injury.

16. 

The following Oregon laws that authorize compulsory fees are unconstitutional, both on

their face and as applied to the Plaintiffs: ORS 9.010, 9.160, 9.166, 9.180, 9.191 and

9.200.

///

///
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COUNT II

17.

In the alternative, and if the Plaintiffs’ First Claim is denied, by failing to reduce the dues

which Plaintiffs’ are compelled to pay for political or ideological activities violates

Plaintiffs’ First Amendment rights as secured by the Fourteenth Amendment to the

United States Constitution in violation of the holding of the US Supreme Court in Keller

v. State Bar of California, 496 U.S. 1 (1990).

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray that this Court:

A. Issue a declaratory judgment against the Defendant that:

1. It is unconstitutional under the First Amendment, as secured against State infringement

by the Fourteenth Amendment and 42 U.S.C. § 1983, to seize or require payment of

compulsory fees from Plaintiffs;

2. The following statutory provisions are unconstitutional under the First Amendment, as

secured against State infringement by the Fourteenth Amendment and 42 U.S.C. § 1983,

and are null and void:  ORS 9.010, 9.160, 9.166, 9.180, 9.191 and 9.200.

 B. Issue preliminary and permanent injunctions against the Defendant that prohibit the

Defendant from collecting compulsory fees from Plaintiffs or otherwise requiring that

they pay compulsory fees to an organization as a condition of their practice of their state

regulated profession.

C. Award Plaintiffs judgment for all compulsory fees seized from them under color of

state law from the beginning of the applicable statute of limitations to the date of the said

award.

D. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988, award Plaintiffs their costs, including reasonable
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attorneys' fees incurred in the litigation of this case.

E. If Plaintiffs’ First Count is not successful, awarding damages for dues collected to the

extent that they are for political or ideological activities of Defendant.

F.  Ordering such further relief as is just and proper.

Dated this 29th day of August, 2018.

/s/ Michael L. Spencer               
Michael L. Spencer, OSB 830907
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